# **AGREEMENT**

between

# BOROUGH OF FAIR HAVEN MONMOUTH COUNTY NEW JERSEY

and

TEAMSTERS LOCAL 177
INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF
TEAMSTERS, CHAUFFEURS
WAREHOUSEMEN AND HELPERS OF
AMERICA

January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2021

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE 1.	RECOGNITION	3
ARTICLE 2.	UNION SECURITY	3
ARTICLE: 3.	EQUAL EMPLOYMENT	4
ARTICLE 4.	MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	4
ARTICLE 5.	PROBATIONARY PERIOD, DISCIPLINE & DISCHARGE	5
ARTICLE 6.	SENIORITY	5
ARTICLE 7.	HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME	6
ARTICLE 8.	SAFETY PROVISIONS AND LOST TIME PAY	9
ARTICLE 9.	LEAVES OF ABSENCE	10
ARTICLE 10.	SICK DAYS	11
ARTICLE 11.	PERSONAL DAYS	13
ARTICLE 12.	PAID HOLIDAYS	13
ARTICLE 13.	VACATIONS	14
ARTICLE 14.	HEALTH BENEFITS	16
ARTICLE 15.	PENSION	16
ARTICLE 16.	MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS	16
ARTICLE 17.	UNION REPRESENTATIVES	18
ARTICLE 18.	SHOP STEWARD	19
ARTICLE 19.	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	20
ARTICLE 20.	CHECKOFF OF UNION DUES, CREDIT UNION & AGENCY SHOP	21
ARTICLE 21.	NO STRIKE	22
ARTICLE 22.	WAGES	22
ARTICLE 23.	MODIFICATION OF AGREEMENT	24
ARTICLE 24	TERM & RENEWAL	25

# **PREAMBLE**

THIS AGREEMENT made this	day of	2017 by and be	etween the
BOROUGH OF FAIR HAVEN,	New Jersey, h	nereinafter referred to	as the "Employer"
and TEAMSTERS LOCAL 177	, affiliated with	the International Bro	therhood of
Teamsters, Chauffeurs, Wareho	ousemen and	Helpers of America, h	ereinafter referred to
as the "Union".			

#### WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, it is the desire of both of the parties hereto to promote and secure harmonious relations between the above named Employer and the Union and the employees of the Department of Public Works; and

WHEREAS, the parties have negotiated and have reached an agreement with respect to wages, hours and other terms and conditions of employment under which the employees of the Department of Public Works work for the Employer; and

WHEREAS, the parties desire to reduce said agreement to writing;

**NOW, THEREFORE,** in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties agree as follows:

# ARTICLE 1. RECOGNITION

A. The Employer herewith recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent in regard to wages, hours and other terms and conditions of employment for all its full-time Department of Public Works employees, but excluding the Public Works Superintendent, and excluding all other Borough employees.

# ARTICLE 2. UNION SECURITY

- A. All present employees who are members of the Local Union on the effective date of this Agreement or on the date of execution of this Agreement, whichever is the latter shall remain members of the Local Union in good standing.
- B. Union membership shall be available to new employees on the same terms and conditions generally available to other members.
- C. The Union shall be notified in the event the Employer hires new or additional employees in the Department of Public Works.

# ARTICLE 3. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT

A. The Employer and the Union agree that they will not discriminate in hiring of employees or in their training upgrading, promotion, transfer, layoffs, discipline, discharge or otherwise, because of race, religion, color, national origin, political affiliation, sex, marital status, age, sexual orientation, disability, or status as a veteran or non-veteran.

# ARTICLE 4. MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

- A. The Employer has both the legal responsibility and the sole right to manage and conduct the municipality's business and, except as specifically limited to this Agreement, to direct the employees, to hire, promote, transfer, assign, schedule, layoff and recall; to suspend, demote, discharge or take other disciplinary action for good and just cause; to control all of Employer's property.
- B. The management and direction of the workforce shall be in the sole discretion and the sole responsibility of the Employer and except as otherwise provided herein, the Employer retains the sole and exclusive right to promulgate rules and regulations within applicable statutes; to direct, designate, schedule and assign duties to the workforce; to plan, direct and control the entire operation of the Department of Public Works: to discontinue, consolidate or reorganize any department or branch; to transfer any or all operations to any location or discontinue the same in whole or in part; to make technological improvements; to install or remove equipment regardless of whether or not such action causes a reduction of any kind in the number of employees, or transfers in the workforce, or requires the assignment of additional different duties to the employees in the workforce, or causes the eliminations or addition of titles or jobs; and to carry out the ordinary and customary functions of management whether or not possessed or exercised by the Employer prior to the execution of this Agreement, except as limited herein. All the rights, powers, discretion, authority and prerogatives possessed by the Employer prior to the execution if this Agreement, whether exercised or not, are retained by and are to remain exclusively with the Employer, except as limited herein.

# ARTICLE 5. PROBATIONARY PERIOD, DISCIPLINE & DISCHARGE

- A. The first six (6) months of employment of any newly hired employees shall be deemed to be a probationary period during which time the terms of this Agreement shall not apply.
- B. During the probationary period, the Employer can reprimand, discipline or discharge without being challenged by the Union and there shall be no duty or responsibility on the Employer for re-employment of probationary employees if they are discharged during the probationary period.
- C. After the probationary period, the parties to this Agreement agree that nothing herein shall prevent or prohibit the Employer from discharging or otherwise disciplining an employee covered by this Agreement, regardless of seniority, for good and just cause. Notice of discharge or discipline shall be served upon the Union by mail at or about the time notice is served upon the employee involved.
- D. In the event that a discharged or disciplined employee feels that he/she has been discharged or disciplined unjustly, said employee or the Union shall have the right, under the procedure hereinafter described, to file a grievance which must be in writing and served upon the Employer within ten (10) working days from the time of discharge or discipline. If no grievance is filed within the time period specified, then said discharge shall be deemed absolute and final unless such time period is extended by mutual agreement of the parties.
- E. In the event that the grounds for discharge or discipline are proved to be inadequate, the employee shall be reinstated immediately, made whole with full back pay from the date of discipline or discharge,

# ARTICLE 6. SENIORITY

- A. Seniority shall be defined as the total length of service that the employee has been employed by the Borough of Fair Haven in the Department of Public Works.
- B. In the event of a layoff, seniority shall prevail. The employee with least seniority shall be the first laid off. Upon any rehiring, the laid off employee with the greatest seniority shall be the first rehired. The laid off employee shall be given notice of recall by telegram, registered letter or certified mail, sent to the address last given the Employer by the employee. Within ten (10) calendar days after tender of delivery at such address of the Employer's notice, the employee must notify the Employer by telegram, registered or certified mail of his/her intent to return to work and must

actually report to work within ten (10) calendar day period. In the event the employee fails to comply with the above provisions, he/she shall lose all seniority rights under this Agreement and shall be considered a voluntary quit.

- C. Seniority shall prevail for all promotions within the bargaining unit for all individuals qualified for the position as determined by the employer.
- D. The union will be advised of the names of all new hires in the Department of Public Works within seven (7) days of completing the probationary period via fax or certified letter to Local 177.

# ARTICLE 7. HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME

- A. The normal work day shall consist of (8) hours. The normal work week shall consist of Monday through Friday, forty (40) hours per week for current employees. New hires shall be required to work any five (5) consecutive days, Monday through Saturday, forty (40) hours per week. Current employees shall be granted the option of working any five (5) days Monday through Saturday at the normal rate of compensation based on the needs of the Borough.
- B. Pay at the rate of time and one-half of the regular rates shall be paid to any employee who performs work under any of the following circumstances:
  - 1. In excess of forty (40) hours in any one week and excluding any paid sick time.
- C. Pay at the rate of time and one-half of the regular rates shall be paid to any employee who performs duties on his/her day off when the duties have been authorized by the Public Works Superintendent and/or Borough Administrator if requested by the employee in writing. Holiday work shall be at double time plus the holiday pay if requested by the employee in writing. Sunday work shall be paid at double time.

All regular members of the Department shall have the option to accumulate and retain authorized overtime which may be then used as needed to obtain time off. This time shall be on a time and one-half off for time worked basis for regular overtime and double time off for time worked basis for Sunday and holiday overtime. This time can be used as discretionary time in ½ day increments, individual days or blocks of days up to and including ten days off. Request for time shall be made to the Department Head to be approved by the Borough Administrator; requests shall be made at least 24 hours in advance; requests for time off in excess

of two (2) days must be made a minimum of one week in advance; and requests are not to be unreasonably denied.

Any accrued authorized overtime not used during that calendar year shall be paid out within the first payroll period of December. Time accrued in the month of December not used within the first quarter of the following year shall be paid out in the first pay period of the second quarter. This time shall be paid on a time and one-half worked basis for regular overtime and double time for holiday overtime.

- D. The Union recognized the Employer's need and right to require reasonable amounts of overtime. The Employer agrees that other Employees of the Employer who are not members of the Bargaining Unit, with the exception of Public Works Superintendent and part-time and temporary employees to the same extent as previously performed, shall not perform any Bargaining Unit work except for training, demonstrating or in the case of an emergency.
- E. Overtime for Bulk Drop-Off dates shall be per the schedule prepared for the current calendar year. Employees unable to work a scheduled date shall notify the Director of Public Works and Engineering at least 48 hours in advance and request another employee to cover the shift.

The Department maintains an annual DPW Crew Call Out Schedule, based on a two (2) week rotation. The schedule allows for the Director of Public Works and Engineering to call in the two (2) employees listed for that designated date, to be called in first for overtime during a snow event, windstorm, hurricane, or other emergency deemed necessary.

- F. If any employee has been requested to work overtime and is unavailable for any reason to perform the overtime work, it shall be considered as if he had worked the overtime period for purposes of equalization of overtime despite the fact that no payments of any kind shall be made for overtime not actually worked.
- G. Employees called in or called back outside of their regular scheduled shift, shall be guaranteed a minimum of two (2) hours at the rate of time and one half their regular hourly rate. In addition, employees shall be entitled to payment at the rate of time and one half for hours actually worked in excess of two hours.
- H. If request for overtime work is made by the Public Works Superintendent and/or Borough Administrator and if, in the opinion of the Public Works Superintendent, an insufficient number of employees needed to perform the work accede to the request, then the Public Works Superintendent may utilize employees to perform the overtime work using the seniority list in reverse order. Failure of an employee to report for overtime work under

these circumstances, unless excused by the Public Works Superintendent for legitimate urgent reasons, shall subject the employee who refuses or rejects the order to discipline.

- I. Employees shall be allowed fifteen (15) minutes for clean-up before lunch and ten (10) minutes for clean-up at the end of their regular shift. Clean-up includes travel time for the sole purpose of going to lunch or to the garage at the end of employees' regular shift, and wash-up and any change of clothes.
- J. Employees shall be allowed two (2) different fifteen (15) minute paid breaks to be taken at the job site, when practical.
- K. Employees working overtime will be entitled to a thirty (30) minute break for each three continuous hours of overtime work, subject to the right of the Public Works Superintendent to stagger breaks in the event overtime work is commenced by various employees or crews at or about the same time.
- L. The Employer shall provide a meal allowance up to \$10.00 per employee working three continuous hours of overtime work during emergency snow conditions providing that a majority of the roads are open. Signed vouchers for the meals shall be submitted to the .Public Works Superintendent who shall in turn submit the receipts on an approved voucher for reimbursement by the Treasurer's Office on a monthly basis. Employees working overtime during emergency conditions shall not travel beyond three (3) miles from the Borough to obtain a meal.
- M. Lunch Break shall be 30 minutes unpaid time.
- N. The weekly hours of work for the Department of Public Works shall be 7 a.m.-3:30 p.m. (Monday through Saturday) except for the summer period (Memorial Day to Labor Day) when the starting time shall be 6 a.m.-2:30 p.m. (Monday through Saturday.
- O. The Borough reserves the right, after prior notice to the Union and after a majority vote of the Borough Council, to modify work hours based on a change of conditions, however in no event the standard work week shall exceed 40 paid hours, 8 paid hours per day. The Borough will provide a minimum of two (2) week notice to employees of a change in work hours.
- P. The Employer shall furnish and maintain for the use and benefit of all employees a time recording system and/or clock. Accurate time and attendance records will be maintained by the Public Works Superintendent.
- Q. Overtime checks shall be provided to employees in a separate check from

the employees' base salary.

# ARTICLE 8. SAFETY PROVISIONS AND LOST TIME PAY

A. The Employer will make reasonable provisions to promote and enforce the safety and health of his employees and shall comply with all federal, state and local requirements for occupational safety and health. Equipment will be maintained in such a manner as to ensure safe operation. All existing equipment shall be maintained according to the manufacturing specifications. The Employer will promote and enforce a safety program to safeguard the health, life and limb of its employees and maintain its equipment in such a manner as to insure safe operation.

Should an employee be injured on the job and is unable to continue working as a result of the injury, the employee shall be paid for the entire day, provided the injury occurred in the course of employment.

- B. No employee shall lose his/her job as a result of any on-the-job injury sustained in the course of employment; provided, however, that the Employer may replace such injured employee if the Employer determines that the position should be filled prior to the injured employee returning to the job. In the event that an injured employee wishes to resume his/her job having been filled by the Employer, then the person with the least seniority filling the job shall be laid off or bumped to provide a job position for the returning employee. All employees shall be afforded with all rights provided under workers compensation laws.
- C. Required safety equipment and such other equipment that the Employer must provide by statute or regulations, including articles of clothing, shall be at no cost to the employees. These shall be used and/or worn by the employee while on the job. Failure to do so is good and just cause for disciplinary action and/or discharge.
- D. All educational and safety programs shall be made available to all members of the Bargaining Unit specific to their job assignment. Seniority shall determine the order of training.
- E. The Borough agrees to maintain a Safety Committee. It is the responsibility of this Committee to provide guidance and recommendations on all factual issues involving safety and health and equipment affecting the Borough DPW employees as well as other safety matters of the Borough and the Joint Insurance Fund.
  - 1. The Borough agrees that at least one (1) DPW bargaining unit employee shall be afforded the opportunity to attend all

Borough safety meetings.

- 2. The Safety Committee shall meet at least once each quarter at the designated time and place.
- If the Safety Committee is unable to resolve a safety and health concern the issue will be subject to the grievance procedure.

# ARTICLE 9. LEAVE OF ABSENCE

# A. ABSENCES:

Absences from duty are classified as illness, excused absences, unexcused absences or vacation and will be noted on Time Reports by the Public Works manager. All absences on account of illness or disability shall be reported immediately to the Public Works Manager. In the event the Public Works Manager cannot be reached, then a message shall be left on the Supervisor's answering machine or if the machine is inoperative, the Borough Administrator shall be notified. In all cases of illness or disability, the Borough Council reserves the right to have the employee examined by a physician designated by the Borough at the Borough's expense. Any absence due to illness or disability of four (4) days or more must be certified by a written statement from an attending physician and must be presented to the Public Works Superintendent. Failure to do so will result in disciplinary/ action and/or discharge.

# B. LEAVES OF ABSENCE:

- Section 1. Any employees desiring leave of absence from his/her employment shall secure written permission from the Union and the Employer. The maximum leave of absence shall be for sixty (60) days and may be extended for like periods. Permission for same must be secured from both the Union and the Employer. Inability to work because of proven sickness or injury shall not result I the loss of seniority rights, subject to the provisions of Article IX.
- Section 2. Family and Medical Leave: Employees, who have been employed for at least twelve continuous months and have worked at least 1,000 hours, in the preceding twelve month period, are eligible for family and medical leave as set forth in the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993. Employees taking family and medical leave will do so with no loss of position or pay rate, employees will continue to be eligible

for paid health insurance by the borough.

# C. FUNERAL LEAVE:

In the event of a death of a fellow employee of the Public Works Department, employees will be given time off and suffer no loss in pay to attend the funeral and/or burial services provided these employees return to work at the conclusion of the service.

# D. BEREAVEMENT LEAVE:

Employees are entitled to five (5) paid day's leave of absence for each death of an employee's immediate relative. "Immediate relative" includes, spouse, significant other, child, mother, father, sister, grandparents, grandchildren, brother, step-father, step-mother, step-child or any other person related by blood or marriage residing in an employee's household. Employees are entitled for two (2) paid day's leave of absence for each non-immediate relative including brother-in-law, sister-in-law, aunt and uncle, mother-in-law and father-in-law, legal guardian, ward, niece, nephew.

# E. MILITARY SERVICE:

All military leave shall be as provided by law. In any event, employees upon returning from military service shall be restored to their former positions at the prevailing rate of pay, with no loss of seniority.

# F. BENEFITS OF PERSONNEL POLICY:

Any benefits resulting from revisions to the Borough Personnel Policy will include Public Works employees, except as otherwise specified in this agreement.

# G. JURY DUTY:

When a seniority employee is called for jury duty service, that employee shall be excused from work when required to appear in court or comply with jury rules that prevent the employee from reporting to work. The employee will be paid the difference between any payment received for jury duty and the employees' regular salary.

# ARTICLE 10. SICK DAYS

#### SICK LEAVE WITH PAY:

Sick leave with full pay will be granted to an employee of the Public Works

Department who has permanent status and is employed on a full-time basis when the employee is unable to report for work due to illness or disability.

Any employee who is entitled to sick leave shall receive full pay for the time lost on account of said sickness or other disability up to a maximum period of time as follows:

- A. During the first calendar year of service, one working day for each month of employment.
- B. After the first calendar year of service, fifteen working days in each calendar year of employment thereafter.
- C. Any employee unable to report for work must notify the Public Works Superintendent. In the event the Public Works Superintendent cannot be reached, the absence and the reason must be placed on the Superintendent's answering machine or in the event that machine is inoperable, must be reported directly to the Borough Administrator.

If any employee of the Public Works Department uses none or a portion of such allowable sick leave for any calendar year, the employee shall accumulate a portion of such allowable sick leave for any calendar year, the amount of such leave not taken shall accumulate to his/her credit from year to year, not to exceed thirty (30) days.

- D. Unused sick leave in an amount not to exceed thirty (30) days may be utilized as provided in one of the following two manners:
  - 1. Current Sick Day Compensation Policy

An employee is entitled to accumulate sick days up to a total of 30 days ("Accumulated Sick Days") to be used in the event of illness. Any employee who has been employed by the Borough for at least five (5) consecutive years and who leaves employment in good standing shall be entitled to payment for any Accumulated Sick Days at the rate of \$50.00 per day.

2. Sick Days Accumulated through 2004 and Prior

Employees who have currently accrued more than 30 Accumulated Sick Days ("Existing Accumulated Sick Days") will be entitled to use such Existing Accumulated Sick Days in the event of illness. Any employee who has been employed with the Borough for at least five (5) consecutive years and

who leaves employment in good standing shall be entitled to payment for any Existing Accumulated Sick Days at the rate of \$50.00 per day, with a maximum payment, regardless of the total number of Existing Accumulated Sick Days, of \$12,500.00.

# E. Miscellaneous.

- Any employee using accrued sick leave for personal business or vacations or any unapproved activity will be subject to disciplinary measures which could result in his or her termination of employment.
- Barring the use of either of these options or in any other event, an employee shall provide 30 days (one month) notice in writing of the date of intended retirement to the Public Works Manager.
- Any employee absent for five consecutive working days or more without notice of absence or permission without good cause will be considered to have resigned from his or her job not in good standing.
- At the discretion of the Mayor and Council, sick leave may be extended for a longer period of time for any employee, but shall not exceed the limits allowed by state law.

# ARTICLE 11. PERSONAL DAYS:

Full-time regular employees of the Public Works Department will receive three (3) personal days per year.

Personal days not utilized within the calendar year received will not accumulate to any future years.

# ARTICLE 12. PAID HOLIDAYS

- New Year's Day
- Martin Luther King's Birthday
- President's Day
- Good Friday

- Memorial Day
- Independence Day
- Labor Day
- Columbus Day
- Veteran's Day
- Thanksgiving Day
- Day after Thanksgiving
- Half-Day Christmas Eve
- Christmas Day
- A. Employees performing duties authorized by the Public Works
  Superintendent on days designated as a paid holiday shall be paid
  double the regular rate plus holiday pay.
- B. Should the Mayor, because of special holiday proclaimed by the President of the United States or the Governor of the State of New Jersey or the Borough Council, close the Borough Offices thereby giving time-off to personnel employed there, the employees covered by this Agreement who perform duties authorized by the Public Works Superintendent on said special holiday shall be paid double the regular rate plus the holiday pay.
- C. If a holiday falls on Sunday, it shall be observed on the following Monday. If a holiday falls on Saturday, it shall be observed on the preceding Friday. Should an official holiday occur while an employee is on sick or vacation leave, the employee shall not have the holiday charged against sick or vacation leave.

#### ARTICLE 13. VACATIONS

Full-time regular employees hired prior to January 1, 2010 will receive vacations with pay as follows:

A. After one year and through five yearsB. After five years through nine years10 days15 days

C. After nine years

One additional day per year served with a maximum of 29 days total

Full-time regular employees hired after December 31, 2009 will receive vacation with pay as follows:

A. After one year and through seven years 10 days

B. After seven years through fourteen years 15 days

# C. After fourteen years

One additional day per year to a maximum of 20 days

After six (6) months of employment, through December 31<sup>st</sup> of the same calendar year, vacation days will be prorated at .75 days per month.

On January 1<sup>st</sup> following six (6) months' probation through seven (7) years – 10 Days' Vacation.

Vacation selections shall be made in seniority order.

All vacation must be taken within the year of entitlement except that if the first anniversary date occurs in December, the vacation to which entitled may be taken the following calendar year but not consecutively with the vacation to which entitled for the second anniversary.

All vacations must be approved by the Public Works Superintendent and Borough Administrator. No vacation selection under this provision shall be unreasonably denied.

For use of one (1) vacation day employees shall submit a written request for approval during normal business hours no less than twenty-four (24) hours in advance of the requested day off; for use of two (2) or three (3) vacation days, employees shall submit a written request for approval during normal business hours no less than forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the requested days off; and for use of four (4) or more days, employees shall submit a written request for approval during normal business hours no less than two weeks in advance of the requested days off.

# ARTICLE 14. HEALTH BENEFITS

- Each full time employee shall be entitled to medical and dental insurance through existing insurance plans as provided by the Borough for all other non-police employees. The Borough has the right to change the insurance carrier as long as the level of benefits remains equal or better than those currently provided. Employees will contribute towards the cost of coverage as required by P.L. 2011, c. 78. The contribution rates are attached as Appendix B.
- 2. The employee may elect not to participate in the Borough health plans. In consideration for their opting out of the plan, the Borough shall pay employees an amount set forth in N.J.S.A. 40A:10-17.1, which, as of the date of this Agreement, shall not exceed 25%, or \$5,000.00, whichever is less, of the amount saved by the Borough because of the employee's waiver of coverage. If the employee's spouse's insurance is cancelled or the spouse no longer has coverage the Borough will enroll the employee under one of the Borough's plans as soon as possible.

The employee will have the option to go back into the Borough health plans for non-hardship reasons at any time. An employee who wishes to resume coverage shall file a declaration with the Borough that their previous health benefit waiver is revoked. An employee who resumes coverage shall repay, on a pro rata basis, any amount received which represents an advance payment for a period of time during which coverage is resumed in accordance with N.J.S.A. 40A:10-17.1.

3. At all times, the Borough will provide retiree health benefits that comply with State law and regulation.

#### ARTICLE 15. PENSION

In accordance with New Jersey statutes and Borough ordinances, the present pension plan administered by the New Jersey Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) will be continued for the life of this Agreement.

# ARTICLE 16 MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

(a) The Borough agrees to provide all DPW employees with uniforms.
 Each employee will be provided with a list of items available from the Borough's uniform vendor, including but not limited to pants, t-shirts (short and long sleeve), sweatshirts, and baseball caps. Select colors

and styles shall be available for each employee to select their preference of uniform. New hires will be allowed \$750 for initial uniform purchase. All other employees will be provided up to \$500 annually for various uniform items. Employees shall maintain their uniforms and only wear clothing in acceptable condition.

- (b) The Borough agrees to \$300.00 annually for work boot reimbursement.
- (c) Any safety equipment that the Borough requires the employee to wear will be purchased and paid for by the Borough. The Borough will continue to purchase and pay for raingear for employees.
- (d) The Shop Steward, or his/her designee, shall give receipts or requisition requests from unit employees to the CFO for boots. The employer will provide either a check in the case of receipts or purchase order in the case of requisition requests no later than fortyfive days after the Finance Office receives the documentation from the Shop Steward or his designee.
- (e) The Shop Steward or his/her designee shall provide to the Finance Office requisition requests from unit employees for orders of the winter uniforms, rain gear, pants, winter shirts and T-shirts. The Finance Office will provide to the Shop Steward or his designee a purchase order for all requisitioned clothing no later than 10 working days after receipt of the requisition requests.
- 2. The Employer agrees to pay for educational courses related to job duties and satisfactorily completed by an employee provided: (1) that attendance at any such course is approved in advance by the Public Works Superintendent and the Borough Administrator. It is recognized and understood by the parties hereto that disapproval of such courses may be based on financial considerations.

Employees are required to reimburse the Borough for any tuition paid for course/classes that are not successfully completed.

A copy of the course completion must be provided to the Borough Administrator upon conclusion of the class or training to be included in the employee's personnel file.

If an employee voluntarily resigns from the Borough within one year of taking a course, or receiving a certification, which was paid for by the Borough, they must reimburse the Borough for 100% of the cost of the education.

If an employee voluntarily resigns from the Borough after one year and up

to two years of taking a course, or receiving a certification, which was paid for by the borough, they must reimburse the Borough for 50% of the cost of the education.

- The employer agrees to furnish, for the sole use and benefit of the Union, a Borough bulletin board in a conspicuous place at the place of business of the employer. It shall be known or referred as the Union bulletin board section.
- Any vacancies for positions with the DPW will be posted on the DPW bulletin board.
- 5. The Borough of Fair Haven shall reimburse employees for CDL renewal fees to be used in the course of Public Works activities.
- 6. Any DPW Employee who is a member of the Fair Haven Volunteer Fire or First Aid Department will be permitted to leave work without loss of compensation to respond to a fire or first aid call.

# ARTICLE 17. UNION REPRESENTATIVES

- A. Duly authorized representatives of the Union may have access during working hours to the premises of the Employer or any other place of work to which bargaining unit employees are assigned as long as it does not disrupt the operation of workplace and shall be permitted to make inspection of membership cards of all employees and the Employer's payroll records of the unit covered by this Agreement for the purpose of ascertaining whether the provisions of this Agreement are being duly complied with by the Employer in good faith, or in regard to any matter connected with the terms of this Agreement. Notice of inspection shall be provided a minimum of two weeks prior to an inspection by authorized representative. The inspections provided herein must first be announced to the Public Works Superintendent and Borough Administrator, who may then determine an adequate and convenient time for the exercise of these functions.
- B. The president, Secretary-Treasurer, or their duly authorized representatives so designated in writing shall be the representatives of the Union and no other person or persons.
- The Employer agrees to grant the necessary and reasonable unpaid time off, without discrimination or loss of seniority rights,

# ARTICLE 18. SHOP STEWARD

- A. There shall be at all times one shop steward designated by the Union and one alternate shop steward designated by the Union, authorized to act in the absence of the shop steward. All references hereinto responsibilities and duties of the shop steward shall apply to the alternate shop steward in the absence of the shop steward.
- B. Shop Steward shall suffer no loss of pay for the time spent during working hours in the performance of his duties, providing the Public Works Superintendent and Borough Administrator has approved his deviation from such permission unreasonably when it does not interfere with normal routine of work. The Employer shall recognize an employee as Shop Steward only after having received written notice of his/her selection or designation by the Union. Under no circumstances shall the Shop Steward be discriminated against by the Employer.
- C. The authority of the Shop Steward and Alternate Shop Steward so designated by the Union shall be limited to, and shall not exceed, the following duties and activities:
  - 1. The investigation and presentation of grievances in accordance with the provisions of this collective bargaining agreement;
  - The collection of dues when authorized by appropriate Local Union action:
  - 3. The transmission of such messages and information which shall originate with, and are authorized by the Local Union or its officers; provided such messages and information (a) have been reduced to writing; or (b) if not reduced to writing, are of a routine nature and do not involve work stoppages, slowdowns, refusal to handle goods or any other interference with the Employer's business.
  - 4. The representation, at the request of any employee covered hereunder, in discussion initiated by the Public Works Superintendent, concerning the work performance of said employee, or any other matter in which an employee feels he/she needs such representation, subject to paragraph B above.
  - 5. Any abuse of the provisions of paragraph C4 above, by the Shop Steward shall, in the first instance, be discussed with a representative of Local Union.
- D. Neither the Shop Steward nor any shop committee or group of employees covered by this Agreement is authorized to neither cause or engage in any strike, slowdown or stoppage in the place of business of the Employer nor order the discharge of any employee.

E. The Employer and the Union recognize these limitations upon the authority of the Shop Steward and the Alternate Shop Steward, the Employer, in so recognizing such limitations, shall have the authority to impose proper discipline, including discharge, in the event the Shop Steward has taken unauthorized strike action, slowdown or work stoppage in violation of this Agreement.

# ARTICLE 19. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

- Section 1. Any dispute involving the interpretation or application of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be a grievance and shall be settled and determined according to the following procedure which must be followed:
- Step 1. The aggrieved employee or employees must present the grievance in writing to the Public Works Manager through the Shop Steward within ten (10) working days after knowledge of the grievance or the reason for the grievance has occurred. If a satisfactory settlement is not reached with the Public Works Manager within ten (10) working days, the grievance may be appealed to Step 2.
- Step 2. If the grievance is not resolved under Step I hereof, the Union's Business Representative may present the written grievance as completed under Step 1 to the Borough Administrator within three (3) working days and arrange for a meeting for the purpose of reviewing the grievance, and the Administrator shall return his/her written answer to the Union within five (5) working days after receipt of grievance or meeting whichever is later.
- Step 3. If the grievance is not resolved in Step 2 hereof, the Union may present the written grievance to the Mayor and Council at its next regularly scheduled meeting provided that at least five (5) days' notice be given to the Mayor and Council. The Mayor and Council shall answer the grievance in writing within ten (10) calendar days after its consideration of said grievance.
- Step 4. If the grievance is not resolved in Step 3, the Union may submit the grievance to binding arbitration. Selection of an arbitrator shall be accomplished by utilizing the State Board of Mediation. The arbitrator shall not change, limit or modify the agreement in whole or in part. The cost of the arbitrator shall be borne equally by the parties.
- Section 2. All of the time limits contained in this Article of the Agreement shall be construed as maximum periods of time and may be extended only by mutual written agreement. Unless such time is extended by mutual written agreement the failure of the Union and/or employees to observe the time limits herein for the presentation of a grievance shall constitute an abandonment of said grievance.
- Section 3. No reprisals of any kind shall be taken by the Mayor and Council or by any

member of the administration against any party's interest, any representative, any member of the Union or any other participant in the grievance procedure by reason of such participation.

# ARTICLE 20. CHECKOFF OF UNION DUES, CREDIT UNION & AGENCY SHOP

- A. The Employer will accept a signed authorization from an employee covered by this Agreement directing the Employer to deduct from the wages of said employee the regular monthly membership dues and initiation fee and assessment of each new member. Written notice must be sent by the Union Secretary-Treasurer to the Employer advising the Employer of the amount of the monthly union dues, initiation fee and assessment.
- B. The said deductions shall be made on the 15<sup>th</sup> and last pay day for each and every month. All monies so deducted shall be remitted to the Union, together with a duplicate list of the employees whose dues, initiation fees and assessments have been deducted, by the tenth (10<sup>th</sup>) day and no later than the fifteenth (15<sup>th</sup>) day of the following month.
- C. The Employer will accept a signed authorization from an employee covered by this Agreement, directing the Employer to deduct from the wages of said employee regular weekly Credit Union deductions and remit to ASPIRE FEDERAL CREDIT UNION, 67 Walnut Avenue., Ste. 104, Clark, NJ 07066.
- D. The Union shall have no right or interest whatsoever in any money authorized to be withheld until such money is actually paid over to it. Neither the Employer nor any of its officials and employees shall be liable for any delay in carrying out such deductions, and upon forwarding a check in payment of such deductions by mail to the Union's last known address, the Employer and its officials and employees shall be released from all liability to, the employees for whom deductions are made and to the Union.
- E. AGENCY SHOP. The Borough and the Union agree that the Borough shall deduct the sum of up to 85% of the rate of the Union dues from each and every non Union Member of the bargaining unit represented by the Union and shall remit this agency shop fee to the Union on a monthly basis no later than the 15<sup>th</sup> of each month. The Union shall notify the Borough of the amount of the agency fee.

# ARTICLE 21. NO STRIKE

The parties agree to settle any differences through the grievance procedure. There shall be no strikes, work stoppages, slowdowns or lockouts of any kind. No officer of representative of the Union shall authorize institute or condone any such activity. No employee shall participate in any such activity. The Employer shall have the right to take disciplinary action including discharge against any employees participating in a violation of the provisions of this Article.

# ARTICLE 22. WAGES

The Borough of Fair Haven and Teamsters Local 177 hereby agree as follows:

Wage Increases will be as follows:

- A. 1. The salary guides for each year are attached as Appendix A.
  - 2. Employees who are presently on Step one (1) of the current salary guide, who will have had eighteen (18) months of service as of 12/31/16, will be moved to Step two (2) of the salary guide, effective 01/01/2017.
  - 3. All employees will be paid their 2017 salary, retroactive to 01/01/2017, at their appropriate 2017 step, as listed above.
  - 4. The foreman titles shall be revised to the correct titles:
    - Buildings, Grounds, & Parks Foreman
    - Streets & Sanitation Foreman
  - 5. The following is a list of certifications or licenses for an annual stipend:
    - Associate's Degree \$250.00
    - Bachelor's Degree \$500.00
    - Foreman \$3.500.00
    - General Foreman \$10,000.00
    - Facilities and Building Maintenance Technician \$7,500.00
    - Certified Public Works Manager (CPWM) \$750.00
    - Commercial Driver's License (CDL)A \$250.00
    - Commercial Pesticide Applicator \$250.00
    - Professional Fertilizer Applicator \$250.00
    - Playground Safety Inspector \$1,000.00
    - Automotive Service Excellence (ASE) \$500.00 Total for One to Four Certifications

- Automotive Service Excellence (ASE) \$1,500.00 Total for
- Five to Eight Certifications
- Recycling Coordinator \$1,000.00
- Assistant Mechanic \$2,500.00 \*\*\*

\*\*\* The primary job title for this position will remain Laborer and the scheduling of shop time for the Assistant Mechanic will be at the sole discretion of the Director of Public Works.

- All certifications or licenses shall be maintained by the employee in order to qualify for the stipend.
- 7. Any and all classes required to obtain a license or certification or a license or certification renewal shall be taken during normal work hours. In the event an employee is required to attend classes outside normal work hours, the employee shall receive compensatory time off or compensation at regular rates of pay, at the discretion of the Borough. All such classes, including hours of attendance, must be approved in writing, in advance, by the Borough.
- Promotion to the next step, as outlined in the salary step guide, shall be merit based. The Director of Public Works and Engineering shall perform annual reviews of all employees.
- All promotions and step increments, with the exception of the probationary period, will be effective on January 1<sup>st</sup>, annually, in accordance with an agreed upon schedule and contract language.
- Employees will move to Step One (1) on the salary guide at the conclusion of their probationary period and will remain at that step until they have served one (1) full calendar year at Step One (1).
- B. Grades and Schedule of Step Increases

Workers Grades:	Year Between Grades:
Probationary	6 months
Grade 1	1 Year
Grade 2	1 Year
Grade 3	1 Year
Grade 4	1 Year
Grade 5	1 Year
Grade 6	1 Year
Grade 7	1 Year
Grade 8	1 Year
Grade 9	1 Year

1 Year

- C. Employees shall be promoted to the next grade after serving the required time in their current grade unless, in the judgment of the Public Works Superintendent and/or Borough Administrator, the employee's performance does not merit promotion. If an employee is denied a step increase, the Borough will provide the employee with a written statement of the reasons for denial.
- D. For employees hired on or after January 1, 2008, for service in the Department of Public Works, promotion shall take place on January 1 the following calendar year if the employee was hired prior to June 30; promotion shall take place after the first full calendar year if the employee was hired after June 30.

# E. Foreman Positions

All members of the bargaining unit if qualified in accordance with Article 6 Section C may apply for the Road Department, Sanitation, and Parks & Building Maintenance Foreman positions with the exception of General Foreman. Appointments shall be made by the Mayor and Council on an annual basis with the recommendation of the DPW Superintendent as funding permits.

A \$3,500.00 annual stipend shall be provided to the individual(s) appointed to Road Department, Sanitation, and Parks & Building Maintenance Foreman positions which shall not be included in wage calculations.

# F. Cell Phone

Effective 01/01/2018, the Borough agrees to provide a means of field communication to all DPW employees, or to reimburse employees \$30.00 per month for use of their personal cell phone during work hours, with no additional reimbursement for damages or insurance coverage. All reimbursement payments will be made quarterly.

# ARTICLE 23. MODIFICATION OF AGREEMENT

Neither the Employer nor any individual employee or group of employees shall have the right to modify or waive any of the provisions of this Agreement.

The Employer agrees not to enter into any agreement or contract with his employees, individually or collectively, which in any way conflicts with the terms and provisions of this Agreement. Any such agreement shall be null and void.

Any modification must be in writing duly executed by an authorized agent of the

Employer and by the President or Secretary-Treasurer of the Union. The Union may request that all negations for modification be held in the presence of a Union negotiating committee, such committee not to exceed two (2) in number.

# ARTICLE 24. TERM & RENEWAL

- A. This Agreement represents and incorporates the complete and final understanding and settlement by the parties.
- B. This contract shall be in full force and effect as of January 1, 2017 and shall remain in effect through December 31, 2021. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect until a new Agreement is executed.
- C. Notice served by either party on the other stating an intention to change, terminate or modify this Agreement shall be by registered or certified mail.
- D. Notice sent by the Union shall be served on the Borough Clerk. Notices sent by the Borough shall be served on the Representative of the Union or his designated representative.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto affixed their Signatures.

	BOROUGH OF FAIR HAVEN
	By: By:
Mysnell Cinquegrana	Date: 12/18/17
	TEAMSTERS LOCAL 177
	By: My Afflet Chris Eltzholtz, Secretary/Treasurer
ATTEST:	Date: 12/15/17
Colin Cheny	

	By: Calcul Kenney, Robert Cherney, President
ATTEST: Chis affly	Date: 12/15/17
	By: Pablo Cunha, Trustee
ATTEST:	Date: 12/15/17
	By: Mww Harry Tansley, Business Agent
ATTEST:	Business Agent  Date: 12/15/17

K121518

		T				
Teamst	ers # 177 - 20	017-2021	Salary G	uide		
		T				
One Very St	eps - With Managem	ont Annroyal				
Jile Teal Ju	sha - Anidi Manakem	The Approval				
	Laborer					
		2017	2018	2019	2020	2021
	Probationary	\$ 33,280.00	\$ 33,779.00	\$ 34,286.00	\$ 34,800.00	\$ 35,322.00
	Step 1	\$ 38,500.00	\$ 39,078.00	\$ 39,664.00	\$ 40,259.00	\$ 40,863.0
	Step 2	\$ 40,425.00	\$ 41,031.00	\$ 41,647.00	\$ 42,272.00	\$ 42,906.0
	Step 3	\$ 42,446.00	\$ 43,083.00	\$ 43,729.00	\$ 44,385.00	\$ 45,051.0
	Step 4	\$ 44,569.00	\$ 45,237.00	\$ 45,916.00	\$ 46,604.00	\$ 47,303.0
	Step 5	\$ 46,797.00	\$ 47,499.00	\$ 48,211.00	\$ 48,935.00	\$ 49,669.00
	Step 6	\$ 48,669.00	\$ 49,399.00	\$ 50,140.00	\$ 50,892.00	\$ 51,655.0
	Step 7	\$ 50,616.00	\$ 51,375.00	\$ 52,145.00	\$ 52,928.00	\$ 53,722.0
	Step 8	\$ 52,640.00	\$ 53,430.00	\$ 54,231.00	\$ 55,045.00	\$ 55,870.0
	Step 9	\$ 54,746.00	\$ 55,567.00	\$ 56,401.00	\$ 57,247.00	\$ 58,105.0
	Step 10	\$ 56,936.00	\$ 57,790.00	\$ 58,657.00	\$ 59,536.00	\$ 60,429.00
	Mechanic					A
	MECHAINE					
	1	<u> </u>				
One Year St	eps - With Managem	ent Approval				
		-				
		2017	2018	2019	2020	2021
		<u> </u>	<u> </u>			
	Probationary	\$ 38,000.00	\$ 38,570.00	\$ 39,149.00	\$ 39,736.00	\$ 40,332.0
	Step 1	\$ 44,380.00	\$ 45,046.00	\$ 45,721.00	\$ 46,407.00	\$ 47,103.0
	Step 2	\$ 46,599.00	\$ 47,298.00	\$ 48,007.00	\$ 48,728.00	\$ 49,458.0
95099800900090059059849880444454444444444	Step 3	\$ 48,929.00		\$ 50,408.00		
	Step 4	~ <del>~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~</del>	\$ 52,146.00	<del></del>	\$ 53,722.00	\$ 54,528.0
	Step S	\$ 53,944.00	<u> </u>	\$ 55,575.00	\$ 56,408.00	
	Step 6	\$ 56,102.00	\$ 56,943.00	\$ 57,798.00	\$ 58,665.00	\$ 59,545.0
	Step 7	\$ 58,346.00		\$ 60,110.00	\$ 61,011.00	\$ 61,926.0
	Step 8	\$ 60,680.00	\$ 61,590.00	\$ 62,514.00	\$ 63,452.00	\$ 64,403.0
	Step 9	\$ 63,107.00	\$ 64,054.00	\$ 65,014.00	\$ 65,990.00	\$ 66,980.0
	Step 10	\$ 65,631.00	\$ 66,616.00	\$ 67,615.00	\$ 68,629.00	\$ 69,659.0
			Accessed the second		Lancing Control of the Control of th	The second secon

Toameter	Toametore #177 201" 2024	101 200	101	* * *	And the state of t		wedgelenning to produce party (actual of the primer as and approximate) in playing a manda we design		Province of the Control of the Contr			A CONTRACTOR OF THE PROPERTY O	VALUED COMMENT OF THE PROPERTY	Anados es estados es estados e	-
	7 . // 4	707-770	Salary	Juide							Anna and a proper demonstration and an anna an anna	The second secon	The second secon	APPENDENT AND APPENDED TO THE PROPERTY OF THE	-
One Year Steps	One Year Steps - With Management Approval	nent Annrowal	ere Minde nan såmmann e fressamming (sessepa	chine www.common.com or programming and common comm		Addison province of the control of t					***************************************	TO THE RESIDENCE AND THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPE	ACT STREET OF THE PARTY OF THE	And a second collabolation of the second of	Part Print and Adding Street Street Street Street
	медалера (продавана възромента пиставану) укландовано	and a state of the		Addition of the second	with the state of						Promise and party of the party		evenesal and a recommendation of the contract	anaman). (vijidan (i) (ina anaman) ang ngang dinanam	And the second s
The second section of the sect	Nichtige eine er van der	***************************************	Michigan and Control of the Control			With the beautiful and the second sec			and the state of t			***************************************	With the second	manufacturalistic and a state of the contract	-
- Shell	Laborer	Nidowana wa		**************************************	de-francescier, manage	***************************************	Marty and Dave			OVER COLONIA COLORIA COLONIA C			The control of the co	Parameter (A) of disease spray (La and Angelon association)	and the state of t
		2017	2018	2019	2020	2021	**************************************	2016	2017	2018	2019	0100	The state of the s	to oblinación appropriate despriyo por a propriede de la compansión de la	Annual March Street Str
	Probationary	5 33 280 00	\$ 33.280 DO   \$ 33.779 DO	6 24 305 00		L	,			A 4 D V	207	0707	7071	Andrews and the suppression of the State S	washing in the same of the sam
5	Step 1	5 38 500 00	00.00.0000	00'00''''	24,800.00	n	Marty Coy	\$64,016.18	\$64,976,00	\$65.951.00	566 940 00	\$67 a44 AA	CCO 000 200	The second secon	Contraction of the last of the
3	Step 2	5 40 425 00	\$ 33,078.00	0 43,664,00	\$ 43,075,00 \$ 39,664,00 \$ 40,259,00 \$ 40,259,00	es l	David Becker	\$ 70,349.65		\$72,476.00	1	574 666 00	506,303,000 \$74,786,00	West designation of the second	month of the latest designation of the lates
5	Step 3	\$ 42.446.00	\$ 43.083.00	2 42 730 00	2 44,272,00	n l	and comments and a series contract climana and any Committee and any open and any				L		00.00	Commission of the Commission o	- Contractive Cont
5	Step 4	C 44 EEG OO	42,003.00			2					-	THE RESERVOIS OF THE PERSON NAMED OF THE PERSO	440 special department assessment of the part of the p	Parameter and the same of the	-
3	Stan S	202.00	2 45,237.00	> 45,916,00	···&-	S	New point and definition and the second and the sec		The second secon				white a residence of the partition and a security and and a security distribution.	Andrew Company of the Common property of the	ACTOR STATE OF THE PARTY NAMED IN COLUMN TO PA
15	Step 6	2 40,737,00		5 48,211.00	\$ 48,935,00	S								CONTRACTOR	Reference Community
2.3	Ctory 7	2 40,003.00	> 49,399,00	\$ 50,140.00		\$ 51,655.00				The second secon	- Name of the last		The second secon		
Companyoracoccionacionacionacionacionacionacionac	1 CO 1	5 50,616.00	5 51,375.00	\$ 52,145.00	\$ 52,928.00	\$ 53,722.00					The state of the s	-			
C .	sep a	5 52,640.00	\$ 53,430,00		\$ 55,045.00	S			And the second of the second s		The state of the s				
5	Step 9	\$ 54,746.00	\$ 54,746.00   \$ 55,567.00	\$ 56,401.00	\$ 56,401.00 \$ 57,247,00	S	ошения денежника предпавать времення предпавать предпав	The second secon		The state of the s				The second secon	Andreas and Andrea
S	Step 10	\$ 56,936,00	\$ 57,790.00	\$ 58,657.00	\$ 56,936.00 \$ 57,790.00 \$ 58,657.00 \$ 59,55.00	·			And a communication of the state of the stat				The second secon		article instantaneous and property and the second
** The state of th	THE PARTY AND ADDRESS OF THE PARTY OF THE PA		- Andreas - Andr	Transfer and American Control of the	-	<u> </u>							and the second s	The second secon	Manager Control of the Control of th
A Proposition of the Contract				emilities and terminate of the international property of the inter	-									Total Commence of the Commence	and the second second second second
5.	Mechanic		White was a property of the fact that the fact the fact that the fact th	Mildelenante de la company		VERNAMENT PROPERTY AND ADDRESS OF THE PROPERTY ADDRESS OF THE PROPERTY AND ADDRESS OF THE PROPERTY ADDRESS	мини фесопальный принципринципринципринципринципринципринципринципринципринципринципринципринципринципринциприн			The state of the s					
	AND THE PROPERTY OF SECURITION	State Conference & Association of the Association o	- Control of the Cont	West of the second seco	***************************************	Proposition of the second seco									
One Year Steps	One Year Steps - With Management Approval	ent Approval	***************************************	The state of the s		**************************************					And the Principle of the Princip			Angel and the second se	The second secon
	entre entre programme de la companya			Part of the Contract of the Co		Communication of the Communica						And the second s			
OPERATOR AND	We're the manufacture of the second s	2017	2018	2019	2020	2031			чен выправнительного вы			The Control of Control			
The second secon	- COLUMN TO THE PROPERTY OF TH		weep of the control o		The same and a same and a same and a same a	The fig. to the contract of th	Videolymonation to describe an accompany of the six describes and approximate accompany						Address of the control of the contro	- Provident Address of the second sec	The second secon
Pi	Probationary	\$ 38,000.00	\$ 38,570.00	\$ 39,149,00	\$ 39,736.00	\$ 40 332 00			non-manufacture and a second an					Parameter de la companya de la comp	-
2	SEP 1	\$ 44,380.00	\$ 45,046.00	\$ 45,721.00	ls	l s		A. C.	***************************************	The second secon			And delivery and d	A A THE RESIDENCE AND A STREET OF THE PARTY	-
X	Step 2	\$ 46,599.00	\$ 47,298.00	\$ 48,007.00		- S		-		Control of the second state of the second stat			Target and a facility of the f		-
N	Step 3	\$ 48,929.00	\$ 49,663.00	\$ 50,408,00	\$ 51,164,00	â				Control of the Contro				diameter (Principality)	manufacture of the contract of
\$	Step 4	\$ 51,375.00	\$ 52,146.00	\$ 52,928.00		1			en e	The state of the s				**************************************	AND THE PERSON NAMED IN COLUMN 2 IN COLUMN
58	Step 5					1							VI 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 10	ATTENDED TO THE REAL PROPERTY OF THE PERSON	Water and Association of the State of the St
*S	Step 6			\$ 57,798,00		ł	And the state of t		The state of the s				THE PARTY OF THE P	The state of the s	and the first hand the forms and a green property
35	Step 7	\$ 58,346,00	\$1000000		S							The state of the s	Personal Control of the Control of t	and the state of t	
35	Step 8	\$ 60,680.00	\$ 61,590.00		\$ 63.452.00	10	A THE PERSON AND ADDRESS OF THE PERSON OF TH						ACCONTRACTOR AND ACCOUNTS ASSESSED ASSESSEDANCE ASSESSED ASSESSEDA	POTENTIAL DE L'ANTINON DE L'ANTINO DE L'AN	The second secon
\$2	Step 9	\$ 63,107.00			\$ 65 990 00	s	Vendele Personala and de popular de sida (de sono entre la polonica de polonica de sono de sono de sono de sono						And the second s		South Committee of the
St	Step 10	\$ 65,631.00	\$ 66,616.00		10	٠,					The state of the s	The same of the sa	**************************************	**************************************	OT COMPANY AND ADDRESS OF THE PARTY OF THE P
On the second se		1 Mary district on the Control of th				00,600,600 6			Very service of the s	e Province and a second of the		ment of the state		The second secon	and the following of the first
	Webserson Tables and T	Processing the second of the s	Quantum property control of the cont	Personance and a second	Control of the second of the s	Contract of the Contract of th		HOOM				***************************************	Printer and the second printer and the second secon	PPP (Colonidity opening of the colonia opening	-



# COUNCIL OF THE BOROUGH OF FAIR HAVEN

# MONMOUTH COUNTY, NEW JERSEY **RESOLUTION**

Motion by: Councilwoman Sorensen Second by: Councilman Jaeger

AFFIRMATIVE: Councilmembers Jaeger, Marchese, Rodriguez and Sorensen

**NEGATIVE:** None **ABSTAIN:** None

**ABSENT:** Councilmembers Koch and Peters

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-235

TITLE: AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR TO

EXECUTE A MEMORANDUM OF AGREEEMENT AND COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT WITH TEAMSTERS LOCAL 177 FOR

YEARS 2017 THROUGH 2021

**WHEREAS,** the Borough has reached an agreement for years 2017 through 2021 with Teamsters Local 177 after extensive negotiations; and

WHEREAS, the parties have executed a Memorandum of Agreement, which has been ratified by Teamsters Local 177; and

**NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,** by the Council of the Borough of Fair Haven, County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, that the Mayor and Borough Administrator are hereby authorized to incorporate the terms of the Memorandum of Agreement and execute the Collective Bargaining Agreement reflective of the Memorandum of Agreement with the PBA for the years 2017 through 2021.

I, Allyson M. Cinquegrana, Municipal Clerk of the Borough of Fair Haven in the County of Monmouth and the State of New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a resolution adopted by the Mayor and Council of the Borough of Fair Haven in the County of Monmouth in the State of New Jersey at a meeting held on November 27, 2017.

Allyson M. Cinquegrana, RMC

Municipal Clerk

# DRAFT- September 28, 2017

# Memorandum of Agreement

The parties, Fair Haven Borough ("Borough") and IBT Local 177 ("Union") hereby agree to modify the terms and conditions of the Agreement which expired on December 31, 2016 ("2016 Agreement") as follows:

- 1. <u>Duration</u>: This contract shall commence on January 1, 2017, and shall expire on December 31, 2021.
- 2. Article 7(E) Hours of Work and Overtime New language, as follows:
  - i. Overtime for Bulk Drop-Off dates shall be per the schedule prepared for the current calendar year. Employees unable to work a scheduled date shall notify the Director of Public Works and Engineering at least 48 hours in advance and request another employee to cover the shift.
  - ii. The Department maintains an annual DPW Crew Call Out Schedule, based on a two (2) week rotation. The schedule allows for the Director of Public Works and Engineering to call in the two (2) employees listed for that designated date, to be called in first for overtime during a snow event, windstorm, hurricane, or other emergency deemed necessary.
- 3. Article 7(J) Hours of Work and Overtime Language to be revised, as follows:

Employees shall be allowed two (2) different fifteen (15) minute paid breaks to be taken at the job site, when practical.

- 4. <u>Article 13 Vacations</u> For employees hired after December 31, 2009, the language should read: After seven years through fourteen years 15 Days.
- 5. Article 13 Vacations The following language will be added:
  - After six (6) months of employment, through December 31<sup>st</sup> of the same calendar year, vacation days will be prorated at .75 days per month.
  - On January 1<sup>st</sup> following six (6) months' probation through seven (7) years 10 Days' Vacation.
- 6. Article 14 Health Benefits Replace ¶2 with the following:

The employee may elect not to participate in the Borough health plans. In consideration for their opting out of the plan, the Borough shall pay employees the amount set forth in N.J.S.A. 40A:10-17.1, which, as of the date of this Memorandum of Agreement, shall not exceed 25%, or \$5,000.00, whichever is less, of the amount saved by the Borough

because of the employee's waiver of coverage. If the employee's spouse's insurance is cancelled or the spouse no longer has coverage the Borough will enroll the employee under one of the Borough's plans as soon as possible.

The employee will have the option to go back into the Borough health plans for non-hardship reasons at any time. An employee who wishes to resume coverage shall file a declaration with the Borough that their previous health benefit waiver is revoked. An employee who resumes coverage shall repay, on a pro rata basis, any amount received which represents an advance payment for a period of time during which coverage is resumed in accordance with N.J.S.A. 40A:10-17.1.

7. <u>Article 16(1) – Miscellaneous Items</u> – Language in the first paragraph to be amended, as follows:

The Borough agrees to provide all DPW employees with uniforms. Each employee will be provided with a list of items available from the Borough's uniform vendor, including but not limited to pants, t-shirts (short and long sleeve), sweatshirts, and baseball caps. Select colors and styles shall be available for each employee to select their preference of uniform. New hires will be allowed \$750 for initial uniform purchase. All other employees will be provided up to \$500 annually for various uniform items. Employees shall maintain their uniforms and only wear clothing in acceptable condition.

The Borough agrees to \$300.00 annually for work boot reimbursement, with 16(1)(a) and (1)(b) remaining in effect.

Any safety equipment that the Borough requires the employee to wear will be purchased and paid for by the Borough. The Borough will continue to purchase and pay for raingear for employees.

- 8. Article 16(2) Miscellaneous Items Add the following language:
  - Employees are required to reimburse the Borough for any tuition paid for course/classes that are not successfully completed.
  - A copy of the course completion must be provided to the Borough Administrator upon conclusion of the class or training to be included in the employee's personnel file.
  - If an employee voluntarily resigns from the Borough within one year of taking a course, or receiving a certification, which was paid for by the Borough, they must reimburse the Borough for 100% of the cost of the education.
  - If an employee voluntarily resigns from the Borough after one year and up to two years of taking a course, or receiving a certification, which was paid for by the borough, they must reimburse the Borough for 50% of the cost of the education.

9. Article 16 - Miscellaneous Items - Add new language, as follows:

Any DPW Employee who is a member of the Fair Haven Volunteer Fire or First Aid Department will be permitted to leave work without loss of compensation to respond to a fire or first aid call.

- 10. <u>Article 22(G) Cell Phone</u> Effective 01/01/2018, the Borough agrees to provide a means of field communication to all DPW employees, or to reimburse employees \$30.00 per month for use of their personal cell phone during work hours, with no additional reimbursement for damages or insurance coverage. All reimbursement payments will be made quarterly.
- 11. Article 22 Wages See Attached Step Guide.
  - Employees who are presently on Step one (1) of the current salary guide, who will have had eighteen (18) months of service as of 12/31/16, will be moved to Step two (2) of the salary guide, effective 01/01/2017.
  - All employees will be paid their 2017 salary, retroactive to 01/01/2017, at their appropriate 2017 step, as listed above.
  - The foreman titles shall be revised to the correct titles:
    - Buildings, Grounds, & Parks Foreman
    - Streets & Sanitation Foreman
  - The following is a list of certifications or licenses for an annual stipend:
    - Associate's Degree \$250.00
    - Bachelor's Degree \$500.00
    - Foreman \$3,500.00
    - General Foreman \$10,000.00
    - Facilities and Building Maintenance Technician \$7,500.00
    - Certified Public Works Manager (CPWM) \$750.00
    - Commercial Driver's License (CDL)A \$250.00
    - Commercial Pesticide Applicator \$250.00
    - Professional Fertilizer Applicator \$250.00
    - Playground Safety Inspector \$1,000.00
    - Automotive Service Excellence (ASE) \$500.00 Total for One to Four Certifications
    - Automotive Service Excellence (ASE) \$1,500.00 Total for Four to Eight Certifications
    - Recycling Coordinator \$1,000.00

Assistant Mechanic - \$2,500.00 \*\*\*

\*\*\* The primary job title for this position will remain Laborer and the scheduling of shop time for the Assistant Mechanic will be at the sole discretion of the Director of Public Works.

- All certifications or licenses shall be maintained by the employee in order to qualify for the stipend.
- Any and all classes required to obtain a license or certification or a license or certification renewal shall be taken during normal work hours. In the event an employee is required to attend classes outside normal work hours, the employee shall receive compensatory time off or compensation at regular rates of pay, at the discretion of the Borough. All such classes, including hours of attendance, must be approved in writing, in advance, by the Borough.
- Promotion to the next step, as outlined in the salary step guide, shall be merit based. The Director of Public Works and Engineering shall perform annual reviews of all employees.
- All promotions and step increments, with the exception of the probationary period, will be effective on January 1<sup>st</sup>, annually, in accordance with an agreed upon schedule and contract language.
- Employees will move to Step One (1) on the salary guide at the conclusion of their probationary period and will remain at that step until they have served one (1) full calendar year at Step One (1).
- 12. All parties acknowledge these terms and conditions are subject to ratification, and all parties agree to recommend for ratification the terms and conditions contained herein to their respective constituents.
- 13. All other terms and conditions of the 2016 Agreement not contained herein shall remain in full force and effect.
- 14. All other proposals not specifically referenced herein are hereby withdrawn by both parties.

Date: <u>November</u> 22, 2017	
BT Local 177 Labert Alenny Robbo Sunha	Fair Haven Borough  Therese Transpord

Laborer   Labo	leamsters # 177 - 2	- 2017-2021 Salary Guide	L Salary G	iuide											-
2018         2019         2020         2021         Marty and Dave         Matry and Dave         Aug           5 33.779.00         5 34.780.00         5 34.280.00         5 15.322.00         Marty Coy         \$64.016.18         2017         2018         2020           5 34.778.00         5 34.780.00         5 34.280.00         5 15.322.00         Marty Coy         \$64.016.18         \$64.976.00         \$67.941.00         \$67.941.00           5 34.078.00         5 34.778.00         5 44.783.00         5 44.783.00         \$67.476.00         \$77.466.00         \$77.466.00           5 34.378.00         5 34.378.00         5 44.738.00         \$67.738.00         \$74.666.00         \$74.666.00         \$74.666.00           5 54.378.00         5 45.178.00         \$67.738.00         \$67.738.00         \$67.738.00         \$74.666.00         \$74.666.00           5 54.378.00         \$67.478.00         \$67.738.00         \$67.738.00         \$67.748.00         \$74.666.00         \$74.666.00           5 55.378.00         \$67.478.00         \$67.748.00         \$67.748.00         \$67.748.00         \$74.666.00         \$74.666.00           5 55.348.00         \$67.478.00         \$67.748.00         \$67.748.00         \$67.748.00         \$77.448.00         \$77.448.00         \$77.448.00	ear Steps - With Manager	ment Appropriate													1
Mary and Dave   Max	0	PACIFIC TO THE PACIFI													+
2018         2019         2020         2021         1110A         2016         2017         2018         2019         2020           5 33.779.00         5 34.786.00         5 34.280.00         5 34.280.00         5 34.280.00         5 37.2476         5 55.901.00         56.901.00         50.7440.00         5 57.2476         5 57.476.00	Laborer						Marty and Dave								
\$ 33.77900         \$ 34.286.00         \$ 34.286.00         \$ 34.286.00         \$ 5.322.00         \$ 64.976.00         \$ 56.9510         \$ 50.9410		2017	2018	2019	2020	2021	Control	2016	2017	2018	2010	ococ		The same of the sa	-
4. 3.17.70.0         5. 3.17.0.0         5. 4.01.0.0         5. 66,910.0         566,910.0         566,940.0         573,746.00         573,	Probationary	\$ 33 380 00				-					5103	7070	1707		+
5.4303100   5.41,6470   0.5 42,272   0.0 5 42,290   0.0 0 avud Becker   5.70,349   65.51,405   0.0 572,476   0.0	Step 1	5 38 500 00		\$ 34,286.00	\$ 34,800.00	\$ 35,322.00		\$64,016.18	\$64,976.00	\$65,951.00	\$66,940.00	\$67,944,00	\$68.963.00		+
\$ 43,230 0 \$ 43,720 0 \$ 44,320 0 \$ 44,320 0 \$ 44,320 0 \$ 43,320 0	Step 2	\$ 40.425.00	-		\$ 40,259.00	\$ 40,863.00			\$71,405.00	\$72,476,00	1	\$74,666.00	\$75,786.00	-	+
\$ 45,237.00 \$ 45,916.00 \$ 46,604.00 \$ 5 49,395.00 \$ 5 47,499.00 \$ 54,210.00 \$ 50,935.00 \$ 5 49,395.00 \$ 5 49,395.00 \$ 5 49,395.00 \$ 5 49,395.00 \$ 5 49,395.00 \$ 5 49,395.00 \$ 5 5,430.00 \$ 5 5,243.00 \$	Step 3	\$ 42,446.00			\$ 42,272.00	\$ 42,906.00									+
\$ 47,499.00 \$ 48,211.00 \$ 6,0392.00 \$ 5 49,399.00 \$ 5,0140.00 \$ 5,0392.00 \$ 5 49,399.00 \$ 5,2145.00 \$ 5,2328.00 \$ 5 5,2328.00 \$ 5 5,2345.00 \$ 5 5,245.00 \$ 5 5,245.00 \$ 5 5,247.00 \$ 5 5,24	Step 4	\$ 44,569.00	\$ 45,237.00		\$ 46 604 00	-									$\vdash$
\$ 549,399.00 \$ 50,140.00 \$ 5,082,00 \$ 5 5,1375.00 \$ 5,2145.00 \$ 5,2328.00 \$ 5 5,3430.00 \$ 5,245.00 \$ 5,545.00 \$ 5 5,3430.00 \$ 5,245.00 \$ 5,545.00 \$ 5 5,245.00 \$ 5 5,247.00 \$ 5 5,247.00 \$ 5 5,247.00 \$ 5 5,7247.00 \$ 5 5,7790.00 \$ 5 8,6401.00 \$ 5 5,7247.00 \$ 5 5,7790.00 \$ 5 8,7790.00 \$ 5 8,728.00 \$ 5 5,7790.00 \$ 5 8,728.00 \$ 5 5,728.00 \$ 5 5,728.00 \$ 5 5,728.00 \$ 5 5,728.00 \$ 5 5,739.00 \$ 5 5,73	Step 5	\$ 46,797.00		\$ 48,211.00	\$ 48 935 00										-
\$ 53,430.00 \$ 52,145.00 \$ 52,928.00 \$ 5 53,430.00 \$ 5 5,431.00 \$ 55,645.00 \$ 5 5,546.00 \$ 5 5,545.00 \$ 5 5,54	Step 6	\$ 48,669.00	-	\$ 50,140.00	\$ 50.892.00										H
\$ 55.567.00 \$ 54,231.00 \$ 55,045.00 \$ \$ \$ 55,247.00 \$ \$ 55,7790.00 \$ 58,657.00 \$ 59,734.00 \$ \$ 57,747.00 \$ \$ 57,74	Step 7	\$ 50,616.00	-	\$ 52,145.00	\$ 52.928.00	\$ 53.722.00									-
\$ 55,567.00 \$ 56,401.00 \$ 57,247.00 \$ 5 57,790.00 \$ 38,657.00 \$ 59,536.00 \$ 5 57,790.00 \$ 58,657.00 \$ 59,536.00 \$ 5 57,790.00 \$ 59,536.00 \$ 5 57,247.00 \$ 5 57,247.00 \$ 5 58,536.00 \$ 5	Step 8	\$ 52,640.00	\$ 53,430,00	\$ 54,231.00											-
\$ 57,790.00   \$ 58,657.00   \$ 59,536.00   \$ 5 5,5	Step 9	\$ 54,746.00		-											-
2018 2019 2020  \$ 38,570.00 \$ 39,149.00 \$ 39,736.00 \$ \$ 45,046.00 \$ 34,721.00 \$ 46,407.00 \$ 5 4,407.00 \$ 5 4,407.00 \$ 5 4,407.00 \$ 5 4,407.00 \$ 5 4,407.00 \$ 5 4,407.00 \$ 5 4,407.00 \$ 5 4,407.00 \$ 5 4,407.00 \$ 5 4,407.00 \$ 5 4,407.00 \$ 5 4,407.00 \$ 5 4,407.00 \$ 5 4,407.00 \$ 5 5,146.00 \$ 5 22,928.00 \$ 5 3,772.00 \$ 5 5,403.00 \$ 5 5,572.00 \$ 5 5,403.00 \$ 5 5,514.00 \$ 5 5	Step 10	\$ 56,936.00		-											
2018   2019   2020   20300   20300   20300   20300   20300   20300   20300   20300   20300   20300   20300   20300   20300   20300   20300   20300   2030000   203000   2030000   2030000   2030000   2030000   2030000   2030000   2030000   2030000   2030000   2030000   2030000   203000   2030000   2030000   2030000   2030000   2030000   2030000   2030000   2030000   2030000   20300000   2030000   20300000   2030												-			-
2018   2019   2020   20300   20300   20300   20300   20300   20300   20300   20300   20300   20300   20300   20300   20300   20300   2030000   2030000   2030000   2030000   2030000   2030000   203000   2030000   2030000   2030000   2030000   2030000   2030000   20	NA - L											-			+
2018         2019         2020           \$ 38,570.00         \$ 39,149.00         \$ 39,736.00         \$ 46,407.00           \$ 45,046.00         \$ 48,721.00         \$ 46,407.00         \$ 46,407.00         \$ 48,728.00           \$ 47,298.00         \$ 56,408.00         \$ 48,728.00         \$ 58,738.00         \$ 58,738.00         \$ 58,738.00         \$ 58,738.00         \$ 58,738.00         \$ 58,738.00         \$ 58,738.00         \$ 58,665.00 <td>Mechanic</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>and the second second second second</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>+</td>	Mechanic				and the second second second second										+
2018         2019         2020           \$ 38,570.00         \$ 39,149.00         \$ 39,736.00         \$ 39,736.00           \$ 45,046.00         \$ 45,721.00         \$ 46,407.00         \$ 5,45,046.00         \$ 5,1164.00         \$ 5,2146.00         \$ 5,1164.00         \$ 5,27,146.00         \$ 52,738.00         \$ 52,746.00         \$ 53,722.00         \$ 5,54,733.00         \$ 55,738.00         \$ 56,043.00 <td< td=""><td>r Stone Mith Manage</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>-</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>+</td></td<>	r Stone Mith Manage									-					+
ionary         \$ 38,000.00         \$ 38,570.00         \$ 39,149.00         \$ 39,736.00         \$ 39,736.00         \$ 39,736.00         \$ 39,736.00         \$ 39,736.00         \$ 39,736.00         \$ 39,736.00         \$ 46,407.00         \$ 46,407.00         \$ 46,407.00         \$ 48,207.00         \$ 46,407.00         \$ 48,228.00         \$ 51,210.00         \$ 48,228.00         \$ 51,216.00         \$ 51,164.00         \$ 51,164.00         \$ 51,164.00         \$ 51,164.00         \$ 51,164.00         \$ 51,164.00         \$ 51,216.00 <t< td=""><td>acha camandes</td><td>nem Approva</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>+</td></t<>	acha camandes	nem Approva													+
tonary         \$ 38,000.00         \$ 38,570.00         \$ 39,149.00         \$ 39,736.00         \$ 39,736.00         \$ 39,736.00         \$ 39,736.00         \$ 39,736.00         \$ 39,736.00         \$ 39,736.00         \$ 46,407.00         \$ 46,407.00         \$ 46,707.00         \$ 46,707.00         \$ 46,707.00         \$ 46,707.00         \$ 46,707.00         \$ 54,708.00         \$ 48,707.00         \$ 51,140.00         \$ 51,140.00         \$ 51,140.00         \$ 51,140.00         \$ 51,140.00         \$ 52,708.00         \$ 56,408.00         \$ 56,102.00         \$ 56,102.00         \$ 56,933.00         \$ 56,513.00         \$ 56,010.00         \$ 56,010.00         \$ 56,510.00         \$ 56,210.00 <t< td=""><td></td><td>2017</td><td>2018</td><td>2019</td><td>2020</td><td>2021</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td><math>\parallel</math></td></t<>		2017	2018	2019	2020	2021									$\parallel$
\$ 38,000.00 \$ 38,740.00 \$ 39,746.00 \$ 39,736.00 \$ 38,740.00 \$ 41,380.00 \$ 45,046.00 \$ 45,721.00 \$ 46,407.00 \$ 5 46,407.00 \$ 5 46,040.00 \$ 45,721.00 \$ 48,728.00 \$ 5 48,029.00 \$ 5 48,029.00 \$ 52,046.00 \$ 52,028.00 \$ 51,164.00 \$ 5 51,375.00 \$ 5 51,146.00 \$ 55,778.00 \$ 56,408.00 \$ 5 56,102.00 \$ 56,278.00 \$ 56,408.00 \$ 5 56,102.00 \$ 56,278.00 \$ 56,101.00 \$ 5 56,102.00 \$ 56,240.00 \$ 5 6,2101.00 \$ 5 6,2102.00 \$ 6 6,2102.00 \$	Brohotionan	00000000	-												+
\$ 44,590,00 \$ 42,046,00 \$ 44,7100 \$ 46,407,00 \$ 46,407,00 \$ 44,6599,00 \$ 47,294,00 \$ 47,294,00 \$ 44,0700 \$ 41,6599,00 \$ 44,6599,00 \$ 44,6790,00 \$ 44,6790,00 \$ 44,8729,00 \$ 44,8729,00 \$ 51,146,00 \$ 52,948,00 \$ 51,146,00 \$ 52,928,00 \$ 51,146,00 \$ 52,928,00 \$ 51,146,00 \$ 52,928,00 \$ 51,146,00 \$ 52,928,00 \$ 51,146,00 \$ 52,978,00 \$ 56,408,00 \$ 56,102,00 \$ 56,243,00 \$ 56,243,00 \$ 56,244,00 \$ 5	Sten 1	5 38,000.00	5 38,570.00							-					+
\$ 48,273.00 \$ 40,232.00 \$ 48,007.00 \$ 48,728.00 \$ 5,4325.00 \$ 49,663.00 \$ 550,408.00 \$ 51,164.00 \$ 5 51,375.00 \$ 54,728.00 \$ 52,978.00 \$ 51,164.00 \$ 5 52,978.00 \$ 5 3,772.00 \$ 5 56,102.00 \$ 56,943.00 \$ 57,798.00 \$ 58,665.00 \$ 5 58,346.00 \$ 5 50,210.00 \$ 61,101.00 \$ 5 60,680.00 \$ 61,590.00 \$ 62,514.00 \$ 62,514.00 \$ 61,011.00 \$ 5 60,680.00 \$ 61,590.00 \$ 62,514.00 \$ 63,452.00 \$ 6 62,631.00 \$ 66,631.00	Sten 2	C 46 500 00	5 43,046.00	-											$\downarrow$
\$ 54,0325.00 \$ 54,146.00 \$ 51,164.00 \$ 51,164.00 \$ 5 13,375.00 \$ 52,146.00 \$ 52,938.00 \$ 53,725.00 \$ 5 53,944.00 \$ 56,102.00 \$ 56,943.00 \$ 55,575.00 \$ 56,408.00 \$ 58,344.00 \$ 56,102.00 \$ 56,408.00 \$ 56,102.00 \$ 56,408.00 \$ 51,778.00 \$ 51,101.00 \$ 5 58,346.00 \$ 51,590.00 \$ 51,101.00	Sten 3	00.000.00	5 47,298.00		\$ 48,728.00	- 1							-	-	+
\$ 53,944.00 \$ 52,146.00 \$ 52,928.00 \$ 53,722.00 \$ 53,3944.00 \$ 54,733.00 \$ 55,575.00 \$ 56,408.00 \$ 5 58,943.00 \$ 55,575.00 \$ 56,408.00 \$ 5 58,408.00 \$ 5,577.00.00 \$ 5,7798.00 \$ 5,865.00 \$ 5 5,844.00 \$ 5,844.00	Step 4	00.626.00	5 49,663.00	\$ 50,408.00	\$ 51,164,00	1									1
\$ 54,944.00 \$ 54,753.00 \$ 55,575.00 \$ 56,408.00 \$ \$ 56,102.00 \$ 56,943.00 \$ 57,798.00 \$ 58,665.00 \$ \$ 58,346.00 \$ 59,221.00 \$ 60,100.00 \$ 61,011.00 \$ \$ 60,680.00 \$ 61,590.00 \$ 62,514.00 \$ 63,452.00 \$ 5 65,631.00 \$ 66,650.00 \$ 66,631.0	h date	5 51,375.00								-	1				-
\$ 56,102.00 \$ 56,943.00 \$ 57,798.00 \$ 58,665.00 \$ 5 58,346.00 \$ 59,221.00 \$ 60,110.00 \$ 61,011.00 \$ 61,011.00 \$ 61,011.00 \$ 61,590.00 \$ 63,514.00 \$ 63,452.00 \$ 63,107.00 \$ 64,054.00 \$ 65,014.00 \$ 65,690.00 \$ 65,631.00 \$ 66,616.00 \$ 67,615.00 \$ 68,629.00 \$ 65,631.00 \$ 66,616.00 \$ 67,615.00 \$ 68,629.00 \$ 67,615.00 \$ 68,629.00 \$ 67,615.00 \$ 68,629.00 \$ 67,615.00 \$ 68,629.00 \$ 67,615.00 \$ 68,629.00 \$ 67,615.00 \$ 68,629.00 \$ 67,615.00 \$ 68,629.00 \$ 67,615.00 \$ 68,629.00 \$ 67,615.00 \$ 68,629.00 \$ 67,615.00 \$ 68,629.00 \$ 67,615.00 \$ 68,629.00 \$ 67,615.00 \$ 68,629.00 \$ 67,615.00 \$ 68,629.00 \$ 67,615.00 \$ 68,629.00 \$ 67,615.00 \$ 68,629.00 \$ 67,615.00 \$ 68,629.00 \$ 67,615.00 \$ 68,629.00 \$ 67,615.00 \$ 67,615.00 \$ 68,629.00 \$ 67,615.00 \$ 67	S dais	\$ 53,944.00	\$ 54,753.00	_		\$ 57,254.00						-	-	-	-
\$ 58,346.00 \$ 59,221.00 \$ 60,110.00 \$ 61,011.00 \$ 560,680.00 \$ 61,590.00 \$ 62,514.00 \$ 63,452.00 \$ 5 63,107.00 \$ 64,054.00 \$ 65,014.00 \$ 65,990.00 \$ \$ 65,631.00 \$ 66,616.00 \$ 67,615.00 \$ 68,629.00 \$	a date	\$ 56,102.00	\$ 56,943.00	\$ 57,798.00		\$ 59,545.00				-					-
\$ 60,680.00 \$ 61,590.00 \$ 62,514.00 \$ 63,452.00 \$ 5 63,107.00 \$ 64,054.00 \$ 65,014.00 \$ 65,990.00 \$ \$ 65,631.00 \$ 66,616.00 \$ 67,615.00 \$ 68,629.00 \$ \$	Step 7	\$ 58,346.00	\$ 59,221.00	\$ 60,110.00		\$ 61,926.00									
\$ 63,107.00 \$ 64,054.00 \$ 65,014.00 \$ 65,990.00 \$ 5 65,631.00 \$ 66,616.00 \$ 67,615.00 \$ 68,629.00 \$	Step 8	\$ 60,680.00				\$ 64,403.00									
\$ 65,631.00 \$ 66,616.00 \$ 67,615.00 \$ 68,629.00 \$	Step 9	\$ 63,107.00	-	-		\$ 66 980 00									
	Step 10	\$ 65,631.00	-	-	\$ 68,629,00	8 69 659 00									
				-											

GC N2 1Hahr

APPENDIX B

HEALTH BENEFITS CONTRIBUTION FOR SINGLE COVERAGE
(PERCENTAGE OF PREMIUM)\*

Salary Range	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Lear 4
less than 20,000	1.13%	2.25%	3.38%	4.50%
20,000-24,999.99	1.38%	2.75%	4.13%	5.50%
25,000-29,999.99	1.88%	3.75%	5.63%	7.50%
30.000-34.999.99	2.50%	5.00%	7,50%	10.00%
35,000-39,999.99	2.75%	5.50%	8,25%	11,00%
40,000-44,999.99	3.00%	6.00%	9,00%	12,00%
45,000-49,999.99	3.50%	7.00%	10.50%	14.00%
50.000-54,999.99	5.00%	10.00%	15.00%	20.00%
55,000-59,999.99	5.75%	11.50%	17.25%	23.00%
60,000-64.999.99	6.75%	13.50%	20.25%	27,00%
65.000-69,999.99	7.25%	14.50%	21.75%	29.00%
70,000-74.999.99	8.00%	16,00%	24.00%	32.00%
75,000-79,999.99	8,25%	16.50%	24.75%	33.00%
80.000-94.999.99	8.50%	17.00%	25.50%	34.00%
95,000 and over	8.75%	17.50%	26.25%	35.00%

<sup>\*</sup>Member contribution is a minimum of 1.5% of base salary towards Health Benefits.

1/2 12/20/17

# HEALTH BENEFITS CONTRIBUTION FOR MEMBER/SPOUSE/PARTNER OR PARENT/CHILD COVERAGE (PERCENTAGE OF PREMIUM)\*

Salary Range	Year L	Year 2	Year 3	Zear 4
less than 25,000	0.88%	1.75%	2.63%	3.50%
25,000-29,999.99	1.13%	2.25%	3.38%	4.50%
30,000-34,999.99	1.50%	3.00%	4.50%	6.00%
35,000-39,999.99	1.75%	3.50%	5.25%	7.00%
40,000-44.999.99	2.00%	4.00%	6.00%	8.00%
45,000-49,999.99	2.50%	5.00%	7.50%	10.00%
50,000-54,999.99	3.75%	7.50%	11.25%	15.00%
55,000-59,999.99	4.25%	8.50%	12.75%	17.00%
60,000-64,999.99	5.25%	10.50%	15.75%	21.00%
65,000-69,999.99	5.75%	11.50%	17.25%	23.00%
70,000-74,999.99	6.50%	13.00%	19.50%	26.00%
75,000-79,999.99	6.75%	13.50%	20.25%	27.00%
80,000-84,999.99	7.00%	14.00%	21.00%	28.00%
85,000-99,999.99	7.50%	15.00%	22.50%	30.00%
100,000 and over	8.75%	17.50%	26.25%	35.00%

A2 Woolis

# HEALTH BENEFITS CONTRIBUTION FOR FAMILY COVERAGE (PERCENTAGE OF PREMIUM)\*

Salary Range	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4
less than 25,000	0.75%	1.50%	2.25%	3.00%
25.000-29,999.99	1.00%	2.00%	3.00%	4.00%
30.000-34.999.99	1.25%	2.50%	3.75%	5.00%
35,000-39,999.99	1.50%	3,00%	4.50%	6.00%
40.000-44.999.99	1.75%	3.50%	5.25%	7.00%
45.000-49,999.99	2.25%	4.50%	6.75%	9.00%
50,000-54,999.99	3.00%	6.00%	9.00%	12.00%
55,000-59,999,99	3,50%	7.00%	10.50%	14.00%
60,000-64,999.99	4.25%	8.50%	12.75%	17.00%
65,000-69,999.99	4.75%	9.50%	14,25%	19.00%
70,000-74,999.99	5.50%	11.00%	16,50%	22.00%
75,000-79,999.99	5.75%	11.50%	17.25%	23.00%
80,000-84,999.99	6,00%	12.00%	18,00%	24.00%
85,000-89,999.99	6.50%	13.00%	19.50%	26.00%
90.000-94,999.99	7.00%	14.00%	21.00%	28.00%
95,000-99,999.99	7.25%	14.50%	21.75%	29.00%
100,000-109,999.99	8.00%	16.00%	24,00%	32.00%
110,000 and over	8.75%	17.50%	26.25%	35.00%

<sup>\*</sup>Member contribution is a minimum of 1.5% of base salary towards Health Benefits

AN Idolo